
1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

January 21, 2020 

 

OPEN SESSION:             7:00 P.M. 

 
Notice is hereby given that the City Council will hold a Regular Meeting on January 21, 2020, at the 

City Council Chambers, 1416 C Street, Livingston, California. Persons with disabilities who may 

need assistance should contact the Deputy City Clerk at least 24 hours prior to this meeting at (209) 

394-8041, Ext. 121. Any writings or documents pertaining to an Open Session item provided to a 

majority of the members of the legislative body less than 72 hours prior to the meeting shall be made 

available for public inspection at Livingston City Hall, 1416 C Street. The Open Session will begin at 

7:00 p.m. The agenda shall be as follows: 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
CALL TO ORDER       Next Resolution No.:  2020-01 

                        Next Ordinance No.:  642 

 Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 Moment of Silence – First Responders and Military Members. 
       

 Roll Call. 

 

 Closed Session Announcements. 

 

 Changes to the Agenda. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS AND REPORTS 

 

 Supervisor Rodrigo Espinoza Announcements and Reports. 

 

 City Staff Announcements and Reports.  

 

 City Manager Announcements and Reports. 

  



2 
 

 City Council Members’ Announcements and Reports. 

 

 Mayor’s Announcements and Reports. 

 

AWARDS, PRESENTATIONS, PROCLAMATIONS 

 

1. Swearing in of Finance Director Vanessa Portillo by Mayor Gurpal Samra.  

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS      

 
This section of the agenda allows members of the public to address the City Council on any item NOT otherwise on 

the agenda.  Members of the public, when recognized by the Mayor, should come forward to the lectern, and identify 

themselves.  Comments are normally limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with State Open Meeting Laws, no 

action will be taken by the City Council this evening.  For items which are on the agenda this evening members of 

the public will be provided an opportunity to address the City Council as each item is brought up for discussion. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine or non-controversial and will be enacted by one vote, unless 

separate action is requested by the City Manager or City Council Member.  There will be no separate discussion of 

these items unless members of the City Council or City Manager request that specific items be removed. 

 

 2. Approval of Warrant Register Dated January 7, 2020. 

 

 3. Approval of Warrant Register Dated January 16, 2020. 

 

 4. Approval of Minutes of Meeting Held on December 3, 2019. 

 

 5. Approval of Minutes of Meeting Held on December 17, 2019. 

  

DISCUSSION AND POTENTIAL ACTION ITEMS 

 

 6. Resolution Appropriating $56,690 of the Citizens Option for Public Safety (COPS) 

Unappropriated Fund Balance from Fiscal Year 2018/2019.  

 

 7. Resolution Adopting City of Livingston Master Employee Salary Schedule Effective January 1, 

2020. 

 

 8. Resolution Accepting Bid from Conco-West, Inc. for the Livingston Water System Improvements 

Project, State Project No. 2410004-003C. 

 

 9. Resolution Authorizing Submittal of 2019 CalHome Application.   

 

 10. Resolution Approving the Cannabis Operating Agreement template.  

 

 11. Resolution Authorization the Purchase of Three Desktop Computers Using State Homeland 

Security Grant Program Funding.  

 

 12. Introduce and Waive the First Reading of Ordinance No. ___ of the City Council of the City of 

Livingston Repealing Ordinance No. 628 and Replacing Livingston Municipal Code, Title 4, 

Chapter 1, “Building Administration Codes” to Adopt and Amend the 2019 California Building 

Code, 2019 California Mechanical Code, 2018 International Property Maintenance Code, 2019 



3 
 

California Plumbing Code, 2019 California Electrical Code, 2019 California Historical Building 

Code, 2019 Energy Code, 2019 California Green Building Standards Code, 2019 California Fire 

Code, and 2019 California Residential Building Code and All Appendices Attached Thereto and 

Set Public Hearing for Regular City Council Meeting on February 18, 2020.  

 

 13. City Council to Provide Staff Direction for Appointment to the Planning Commission.  

 

 14. Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Amendment to the Option for the 

Purchase of Certain Real Property Located on D Street Between 5th and 6th Streets (024-147-006, 

024-153-003, 024-153-011 and 024-154-005). 

 

 15. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Professional Service Agreement with Mintier Harnish 

Planning Consultants for the Preparation of a General Plan Update and Accompanying 

Environmental Impact Report. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 







































































































































































Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 

ACCEPTING BID AND AWARDING CONTRACT TO CONCO-WEST, INC. FOR THE CITY 

OF LIVINGSTON WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT,  

STATE PROJECT NO. 2410004-003C 

 

 WHEREAS, the Invitation to Bid for the LIVINGSTON WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 

PROJECT NO. 2410004-003C in the City of Livingston was listed in the Merced Sunstar on November 01, 

2019; and   

 

 WHEREAS, the project will consist of furnishing and installing approximately 3,040 linear feet 

of 12-inch waterline between Well No. 14 and Well No.16, site yard piping, expanding the existing 

arsenic removal treatment facilities and constructing a new backwash tank, installing Owner-furnished 

GAC filtration vessels and components for a centralized TCP treatment system, constructing chemical 

building expansion, refurbishing an existing well pump, and other site and miscellaneous work at Well 

No. 16 in the City of Livingston; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the following bids for the project were publicly opened and read aloud at the 

Livingston City Hall on December 17, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. 

 

Contractor Total Bid 

Conco-West, Inc. $2,820,040.00 

RTC Construction Management, Inc. dba 

R.L. Friend Construction $2,968,716.00 

W. M. Lyles Co. $3,066,970.00 

Syblon Reid $3,519,320.00 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Engineer’s Estimate was $3,359,195.00. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 

RESOLVES upon the recommendation of the City Engineer that the LIVINGSTON WATER SYSTEM 

IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT, STATE PROJECT NO. 2410004-003C be awarded to: CONCO-WEST, 

INC. in the amount of Two Million, Eight Hundred Twenty Thousand Forty Dollars and no cents 

($2,820,040.00). 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Manager is authorized to execute an agreement on 

behalf of the City awarding the project, in a form approved by the City Attorney.  

 

Passed and adopted this 21st day of January, 2020, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:   

NOTES: 

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN: 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

Gurpal Samra, Mayor 

of the City of Livingston 

 

 

ATTEST: 

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed and adopted at a regular 

meeting of the City Council of the City of Livingston this 21st day of January, 2020. 

 

 

 

 ___________________________ 

  Monica Cisneros, Deputy City Clerk 

  of the City of Livingston 

 





STAFF REPORT 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution Authorizing Submittal of 2019 CalHome Application 

 

MEETING DATE: January 21, 2020 

 

PREPARED BY: Jose Antonio Ramirez, City Manager 

 

REVIEWED BY: Jose Antonio Ramirez, City Manager 

 

            

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1.  Adopt Resolution No. ____ authorizing the submittal of a 2019 grant application to the 

California Department of Housing and Community Development for funding under the CalHome 

Program, and if selected, the execution of a standard agreement and required program documents.  

 

2.   Authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Self-Help Enterprises to write the 

application, and if funded, to administer and implement the CalHome programs, in a form approved by 

the City Attorney.  

 

BACKGROUND: 
 

A resolution of application is attached for your consideration which allows submittal of an application for 

up to $600,000 in grant funding for the implementation of a First-Time Homebuyer Mortgage Assistance 

Program and an Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Assistance Program within the city limits of the City of 

Livingston. The application is in response to the 2019 CalHome Program Notice of Funding Availability 

(NOFA) first issued on November 27, 2019, and amended on December 23, 2019, with an extended 

application deadline of February 17, 2020.  

 

The Mortgage Assistance Program involves permanent gap financing in the form of a deferred payment 

loan to income eligible borrowers to account for remaining homebuyer costs after securing a primary 

mortgage. This gap financing may help borrowers purchase single-family residential units with or without 

accessory dwelling units (ADUs) or junior accessory dwelling units (JADUs). The maximum loan 

amount will be 40 percent of a borrower’s purchase price for a property, up to a maximum of $100,000.  

 

The Rehabilitation Program offers income eligible persons financing, also in the form of a deferred 

payment loan, to accomplish any of the following: the repair, rehabilitation, or reconstruction of single-

family residential units; the construction, reconstruction, repair, or rehabilitation of an ADU or JADU; 

and, the repair or replacement of a manufactured home. Under the rehabilitation assistance program the 

maximum loan amounts vary. For the rehabilitation of single-family residential units, the maximum loan 

amount will be $75,000, except if a home is in need of reconstruction, the maximum loan amount is 

$125,000. And for ADU construction, the maximum per-unit loan amount is $100,000.  

 

The resolution authorizes the City Manager, or his designee(s), to sign the application, the Standard 

Agreement, and any subsequent amendments or modification thereto, as well as any other documents 

required by HCD for participation in the CalHome Program.  

 

The application will be written and administered by Self-Help Enterprises, if funded. 

 



 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

Self-Help Enterprises (SHE) fee to write and submit the grant application is $2,500.  If the CalHome 

application is successful, the activity delivery costs will be fully funded by the grant.  However, grant 

administration is not covered by the grant.  SHE will charge the City $5,000 to administer the grant 

spread out through a period of three (3) years.  Grant application submittal and administration costs will 

be paid for by the Home Program Income (Fund 1214).    If the grant is approved, Finance will make the 

necessary budget adjustments to account for these transactions.   

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

 

1.  Resolution No. 2020- 

2.  Agreement for Services  

 

























































































































1 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Professional Service Agreement 

with Mintier Harnish Planning Consultants for the Preparation of a General 

Plan Update and Accompanying Environmental Impact Report 

  

MEETING DATE:      January 21, 2020 

  

PREPARED BY:         Jose Antonio Ramirez, City Manager  

 

REVIEWED BY: Jose Antonio Ramirez, City Manager 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

That the City Council Approves and authorizes the City Manager to execute a Professional Service 

Agreement with Mintier Harnish Planning Consultants to prepare the Livingston General Plan Update 

2035 and amend the Fiscal Year 2019/2020  budget by increasing the appropriations limit for 

expenditures for the proposed project. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The General Plan services as the guiding framework for all future development in the City of Livingston. 

It is the City’s single most important planning document and also serves as the composition for future 

development. Under State planning laws, a city’s General Plan must include a comprehensive, long-term 

plan for the physical development of both the city and any land outside the city’s boundaries that the city 

determines relates to its planning. The General Plan must consist of a statement of development policies 

and must include diagrams and test setting forth objectives, principles, standards, and plan proposals. The 

General Plan must consist of seven (7) mandatory elements: land use, circulation, housing, conservation, 

open space, noise, and safety, and any optional element the city chooses to adopt. All cities and counties 

in California are required by law to have a General Plan.  

 

The last General Plan update was adopted in 1999, and since that time, the City has experienced 

significant economic and technological changes, with more on the horizon. The previous General Plan 

Update consulting contract resulted in the completion of the 1999 General Plan. The 2008 General Plan 

Update was deemed invalid by the courts, and so staff reverted back to using the 1999 General Plan. A 

new General Plan update is necessary to refine the concepts that have become outdated and respond to 

new legislative requirements to ensure the Plan is legally sound.  

 

City Manager’s Office prepared a Request for Proposal (RFP) from qualified agencies and consulting 

firms to prepare a General Plan Update and accompanying Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the 

City of Livingston.  

 

The scope of services would be to provide a focused update to respond to the city’s immediate needs 

while ensuring the General Plan provides clear guidance for the long term. The Update process would 

include six (6) phases which consist of the following: 

 

 1. Goal Setting and Vision 

 2. Sphere of Influence Modification 

 3. Policy Review and Formulation of Programs 



2 

 

 4. Draft General Plan Land USE Diagram and Text 

 5. Public Discussion and Public Hearings on Draft General Plan and EIR 

 6. Preparation of Final General Plan Documents and EIR 

 

The RFP was posted on the City’s website and e-mailed to several vendors.  

 

In response to the RFP, the City received two (2) proposals from qualified firms. City staff recommends 

the City Council authorize the City Manager to execute a Professional Service Agreement with Mintier 

Harnish Planning Consultants to prepare a General Plan Update in the amount of $611,540 over two (2) 

fiscal years with a contingency of 5% in the amount of $30,577.  The goal is to complete the update in 

two calendar years, and we understand that this goal is pretty ambitious.      

 

Mintier Harnish Planning Consultants is recognized as statewide leaders in General Plan preparation, 

having worked on over 60 General Plans across the State, many of which have been in the Central Valley. 

Mintier Harnish Planning Consultants will be partnering with Rincon, Inc., (Environmental Impact 

Report), GHD (Circulation Element) to lead the effort of the General Plan Update. Mintier Harnish 

Planning Consultants is a semi-local firm based out of the City of Sacramento and is very responsive.  

They care about good planning, and they have been recognized for their excellent work. Mintier Harnish 

Planning Consultants brings experience in regional plans, specific plans, zoning, sustainability and 

resilience plans, land use planning, urban design, housing elements, and community engagement.  They 

will provide a big picture understanding of the critical relationship between land use, environmental and 

market issues, and community interests. Mintier Harnish Planning Consultants has organized and 

conducted substantial community engagement efforts throughout the Central Valley. They are currently 

working for the City of Kerman, Merced County, Fresno County, Stanislaus County, and other 

municipalities and counties in the vicinity.   

 

We like their work style because they work closely with the staff, general plan advisory committee, 

planning commission, and city council.  They are very approachable, collegial, and have a comfortable 

work style.    

  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

A General Plan Maintenance Fee equivalent to .005% of the valuation is collected with each building 

permit. The fee is set to be used to update and prepare the General Plan as necessary. Currently, Fund 

2007 holds a balance of $347 thousand that can be used towards the General Plan Update project.  

Funding for the second year is subject to economic market conditions and total permit fees collected.  The 

following is a breakdown of the General Plan Update project cost by Fiscal Year: 

 

It is important to note that General Plan Updates are long-range planning documents. After final adoption, 

the City is not anticipated to prepare a General Plan Update for after another decade.  

 

Staff recommends contracting with Mintier Harnish Planning Consultants to update the City’s General 

Plan with a proposed cost of $611,540 and a 5% contingency amount of $30,577 to cover any unforeseen 

out-of-scope work that would be necessary to ensure responsiveness to community concerns. The Finance 

staff will make the appropriate budget adjustments to incorporate the expenditures listed above.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 FY 2019/20 FY 2020/21 Total (including 

contingency) 

Budget Allocation $347,000 $295,117 $642,117 



3 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

1.  Resolution  

2.  Professional Service Agreement  

 



Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-     

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 

AGREEMENT WITH MINTIER HARNISH PLANNING CONSULTANTS FOR THE 

PREPARATION OF A GENERAL PLAN UPDATE AND ACCOMPANYING 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT.  

  

 

WHEREAS, a Request for Proposal from qualified firms for the preparation of a General Plan 

Update and accompanying Environmental Impact Report (EIR) was issued on October 9, 2019; 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the proposal from Mintier Harnish Planning 

Consultants for the preparation of the City of Livingston General Plan Update 2035 and 

accompanying EIR; and   

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Livingston has budgeted funds for this purpose under 

Fiscal Year 2019-2020 budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, funding in Fiscal Year 2020-2021 is subject to available funding from permit fees 

collected; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Livingston may adjust the overall appropriation levels 

in each fund at any time during the Fiscal Year by action to amend the budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, the funds are available in the General Plan Update Fee (Fund 2007); and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed Professional Service Agreement has been reviewed and approved by 

the City Attorney.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Livingston, State 

of California that: 

 

 1. That the proposal of $611,540 for the preparation of a General Plan Update, plus 

a 5% contingency ($30,577) and accompanying EIR, is hereby accepted.  

 

 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute an agreement in 

the form presented herewith for and on behalf of the City, subject to changes to the indemnity 

provisions as approved by the City Attorney.  

 

  



Page 2 of 2 

Passed and adopted this 21st day of January, 2020, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:           

NOES:          

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT:     

 

 

 ___________________________ 

  Gurpal Samra, Mayor 

  of the City of Livingston 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

I, hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed and adopted at a 

Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Livingston this 21st  day of January,  2020. 

 

 

      

 ________________________ 

        Antonio Silva, City Clerk 

        of the City of Livingston 

 


























































	Agenda Cover Sheet
	Item 2
	Item 3
	Item 4
	Item 5
	Item 6
	Item 7
	Item 8
	Item 9
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Item 15

